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SACRAMENTO REGIONAL COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT and SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT 

RFP # 9073 - On-Call Graphic Design Services 

RFP issued March 1, 2021 

Response to Questions – Posted April 1, 2021 

Date Question Response 

3/2/21 
Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? 
(like, from India or Canada) 

The RFP does not include a restriction on firm location. 

3/2/21 Whether we need to come over there for meetings? In-person meetings may often be required. 

3/2/21 
Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? 

(like, from India or Canada) 
The RFP does not include a restriction on where tasks must be 
performed. 

3/2/21 Can we submit the proposals via email? The instructions for submitting proposals are listed on page 7 of the RFP. 

3/2/21 

Keeping in mind the threat of the ongoing 

coronavirus pandemic, will you be open to receiving proposals 

only via email or online? It will ensure the safety of your 

staff/reviewers who would be touching and reviewing physical 

proposals and of our team who is responsible for putting 

packets together of proposals and mailing them out. 

The instructions for submitting proposals are listed on page 7 of the RFP. 

3/2/21 What is the total budget for this project? 
The total estimated contract amounts can be found on page 9 of the 
RFP.  

3/2/21 
Will face to face meetings be required or other forms of virtual 
meetings are acceptable? 

In-person meetings may be required. 

3/2/21 Is there a local area preference? 
The RFP does not include a restriction on firm location. A local base for 
key interactive staff is preferred unless the consultant can demonstrate 
no project impact. This is outlined on page 5 of the RFP. 

3/2/21 
Are there any points assigned to small and minority 
businesses with certifications? If so will other state certificates 
or federal ones work? 

No. 
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3/2/21 
Our expertise is in graphic design but not in other areas like 
videography or photography. Can we still apply? 

Photography and videography are outlined as two key areas in the Scope 
of Services found on page 4 of this RFP. If a firm plans to use 
subcontractors for any scope of services, the proposed subcontractors 
must be identified. Key subcontractors, relevant experience, and 
supporting material must be included in the proposal. 

3/2/21 
We provide remote press checks but not in person. Will that 
work? 

In-person press checks may be necessary. 

3/2/21 Who is the incumbent? 
Currently, SASD and Regional San have On-Call Graphic Services 
contracts with two firms—Page Design Group and MeringCarson. 

3/2/21 
What has the district typically paid for these services in the 
past? Please break down the cost paid by the hour versus 
project? 

A maximum dollar value is customarily established for awarded on-call 
contracts. Associated hourly rates are proposed by consulting firms via 
cost proposal submitted in response to a given RFP, and terms are 
negotiated with SASD and Regional San. Additionally, usage of on-call 
services at the districts’ discretion will vary, depending upon the needs 
of the Districts. 

3/2/21 Does the district have a style guide? Yes, both SASD and Regional San have Brand Guidelines/Style Guides. 

3/2/21 Where can we find samples of past work? 
Various professionally designed materials can be found throughout our 
websites at www.sacsewer.com and www.regionalsan.com.  

3/6/21 Will Canadian graphic designers be considered for this RFP? 
The RFP does not include a restriction on firm location; however, in-
person press checks and meetings may be required. 

3/20/21 

Section J, Employment Practices, on the proposal contents list 
on page 5 is not described. Can you please provide 
information as to what should be included for Employment 
Practices? Please note that on page 7 of the RFP, there is a 
description for section J, but it actually lists and describes the 
item that was listed as section K on the Contents. 

The Employment Practices section of this RFP should have been 
removed. Our apologies for the confusion. We’ve issued an addendum 
that addresses this change, which you can read here: 
www.regionalsan.com/post/rfp-no-9073-call-graphic-design-services 

3/24/21 

This is more of a clarification: Can you confirm that the 20-
page limit only applies to these sections: A. Company 
Background, B. Consultant Team, G. Proprietary Information, 
I. References, J. Exceptions to Sample Agreement Terms and 
Conditions. Does this mean that it can be more than 20 pages 
as long as these 5 sections are kept to less than 20 pages 
total? 

Correct. 

http://www.sacsewer.com/
http://www.regionalsan.com/
http://www.regionalsan.com/post/rfp-no-9073-call-graphic-design-services
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3/24/21 

Can we provide just a URL link for our digital versions of these 
submissions? Or do you need a file that is held on a disk drive 
to give out? We can put the whole submission on a mini site 
that may be easier to send to people. 

There is no restriction on how the digital version is provided. A URL link 
is sufficient. 

3/26/21 

Does the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District 
require four (4) original i.e. wet signed documents in our 
submission, or will digital signatures suffice? (Our team is 
working 100% remote at this point in time, arranging for 
original signatures would be an added challenge). 

Four complete hard copies of firms’ proposals need to be submitted to 
the address on page 7 of the RFP. The hard copies do not need to have 
wet signatures. Digital signatures on those documents are sufficient.   

3/26/21 
If an electronic digital media copy is required, what form does 
the District prefer, an email to you perhaps, or a file on a USB 
port for example? 

An electronic digital media copy is required; however, there is no 
preference on how that digital copy is provided. A USB file, an email, or a 
URL to a digital proposal copy are all sufficient options. 

3/26/21 
What are the top business and/or marketing goals (i.e. KPIs) 
for each district over the course of the next contract period, 
pertaining specifically to Graphic Design efforts? 

These goals will be discussed following the development of contracts 
with the successful firms. 

3/26/21 

To what extent should the winning firm(s) expect to 
coordinate with other contracted entities, particularly with 
respect to the development of collateral materials and/or 
advertisements that are connected to Public Relations 
activities and deadlines? 

The amount of coordination with other entities will vary based on the 
nature of the graphic design task.  

3/26/21 
What is the expected turnaround time for photography 
assignments and print press checks? 

The expected turnaround time will vary based on the nature of the 
assignment.  

3/26/21 
Is there an incumbent currently working with you? If so, are 
you happy with the work they’re doing and why? 

Currently, SASD and Regional San have On-Call Graphic Services 
contracts with two firms—Page Design Group and MeringCarson. 
Services from said firms have been satisfactory. 

3/26/21 
If there’s an incumbent will they be participating in this bid 
process? 

It is up to those firms to decide if they plan to propose on this RFP. 

3/26/21 
With the pandemic possibly at issue, will the production of 
video shoots only include studio, existing b-roll, and still 
images or do you expect new on-site visual assets? 

Details for photoshoots have not yet been planned; however, COVID-19 
safety protocols will be followed for in-person work. 

3/26/21 
If new video and photography is to be produced, what Covid-
19 protocols are acceptable for safety of all involved? 

Current guidance from the CDC, and associated safety protocols, will be 
followed.  

3/26/21 
What will the videos be used for i.e.: social media, OTT, 
broadcast television or other media? 

Video assets are utilized on a number of platforms, including social 
media, television, websites, and various other mediums, as desired. 
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3/26/21 
Post-COVID restrictions, will meetings be in person or virtual? 
How often? 

This will vary based on the nature of the task. 

3/26/21 
If there’s more than one firm selected, how do you anticipate 
determining assignment of projects? 

Task assignment will vary based on SASD and Regional San needs and 
the availability of the firms selected. 

3/26/21 What is the annual budget? 
It will vary based on the districts’ needs; however, the estimated 
contract amounts can be found on page 9 of the RFP. 

3/26/21 
Is the District office open to take delivery of hard copy RFP 
responses? 

Yes. 

3/26/21 

The RFP states the response cannot be more than 20 pages 
and resumes do not count toward the 20.  Section B 
Consultant team it states a staff diagram and resumes must be 
attached.  Are the resumes to be placed in this section or as an 
attachment at the end of the response? 

Resumes can be placed as an attachment. 

3/26/21 
How long is the contract expected to last? Will it commence at 
the start of your fiscal year (July)? 

The details of Award of Contract can be seen on page 9 of the RFP. 

3/26/21 Is there a preference for in-state vendors? The RFP does not include a preference for firm location. 

3/26/21 
Is there an incumbent vendor currently providing these 
services? If so, who? 

Currently, SASD and Regional San have On-Call Graphic Services 
contracts with two firms—Page Design Group and MeringCarson. 

3/26/21 

Are there any existing vendors, e.g., printers, that you would 
want the selected contractor to work with, or would the 
selection of those vendors be at the discretion of the 
contractor? 

Yes, there are some existing vendors that the successful firms will need 
to coordinate with. 

3/26/21 Do you currently have a brand identity standards guide? Yes, both SASD and Regional San have Brand Guidelines/Style Guides. 

3/26/21 
What metrics will you use to measure the success of this 
partnership? 

Metrics will vary based on the nature of the task. 

3/26/21 
Since this is an on-call RFP, will your team identify a strategy 
and/or provide tactical direction, or will the selected vendor 
be responsible for developing these? 

Strategy development will vary based on the nature of the task. 

3/26/21 
Does the anticipated budget range include direct costs such as 
media placement, printing, and the like? 

Direct costs will vary by task. 

 


